
VERSION 1.0 

February 20, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2019 

SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL DISTRICT BOARD 
TODD HOUSE, BOARD CHAIRMAN 

KATHLEEN CHAMBERLAIN, BOARD CLERK 

JEFF CROSS, BOARD DIRECTOR 

JASON MOELLER, BOARD DIRECTOR 

LARRY STRAND, BOARD DIRECTOR 



Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

February 20, 2019 
 

Mission Statement 
Preserve Life ~ Protect Property ~ Add Value to OUR Community 

 

Superstition Fire / Medical Board Meeting Agenda February 20, 2019 

 The Board will hold a meeting on Wednesday, February 20, 2019. The meeting will be held at the 
Superstition Fire & Medical District’s Administrative Office, located at 565 N. Idaho Road, Apache 
Junction, Arizona. The meeting will be open to the public and will begin at 5:30 p.m. local time. 

 
A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Roll Call 

 
The following agenda items are scheduled for discussion at the board meeting. The Governing Board may 
or may not decide to take action on any or all items. The order of the agenda items may or may not be 
taken in the order listed. 
 

1. Review and approval of the January 2019 financial reports and bank reconciliations. 
(BOD #2019-02-01) 

 
2.  Recognition of employee performance, achievements, and special recognition for 

community members. (BOD #2019-02-02) 
 
3.  Call to the Public. (BOD #2019-02-N/A) 

A.R.S. §38-431.01(H) A public body may make an open call to the public during a public 
meeting, subject to reasonable time, place, and manner restrictions, to all individuals to address 
the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the public body. At the conclusion of an 
open call to the public, individual members of the public body may respond to criticism made 
by those who have addressed the public body, may ask staff to review a matter, or may ask that 
a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the public body shall not discuss or 
take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters are 
properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 
4.  Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items listed below  

(BOD #2019-02-03): 
 
A. Board Meeting Minutes from January 16, 2019 
B. Work Session Minutes from January 28, 2019 
C. Renewal of Contract for Property and Casualty Insurance Service 

 
5. Discussion of the Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Tax Abstract for Pinal and Maricopa Counties, 

and its impact on the development of the Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Revenue Budget. (BOD 
#2019-02-04) 
 
 
 
 
 



Superstition Fire / Medical Board Meeting Agenda February 20, 2019 

6. Discussion and possible approval of Resolution #2019-02-20-01 for the annexation of the 
Kauffman Homes two-parcel properties.  (BOD #2019-02-05) 
 

7. Discussion and possible approval of annexation of the Arizonian properties.  (BOD 
#2019-02-06) 
 

8. Discussion, presentation and possible approval of the following Policies brought for 
review at the January 16, 2019 Board Meeting for final approval at the February 20, 
2019 Board Meeting.  (BOD #2019-02-07) 
 
• 201 - Emergency Action Plan & Fire Prevention 
• 210 - Solicitation of Funds 
• 318 - Safe Haven Newborn Law 
• 321 - Scene Preservation 
• 322 - Child Abuse 
• 323 - Disposition of Valuables 
• 324 - Carrying of Weapons on Duty 
• 325 - Performance of Duties 
• 326 - Adult Abuse 
• 327 - Traffic Collisions 
• 328 - Line of Duty Death & Serious Injury Investigations 
• 329 - National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) 
• 332 - Grocery Shopping On-Duty 

  

9. Discussion and presentation of the following Policies brought for review at the February 
20, 2019 Board Meeting for final approval at the March 20, 2019 Board Meeting.  (BOD 
#2019-02-08) 
 
• 1000 – Recruitment and Selection 
• 1002 – Promotions and Transfers 
• 1003 – Positions 
• 1004 – Classification Specifications 
• 1006 – Fire Officer Development 
• 1007 – Educational Incentives 
• 1010 – Emergency Recall 
• 1012 – Discriminatory Harassment 
• 1013 – Conduct and Behavior 

 

 

 

 

 



Superstition Fire / Medical Board Meeting Agenda February 20, 2019 

 

10. Discussion and possible approval of Sick Leave Buy-Out at the time of retirement. 
(BOD #2019-02-09) 
 

11. Discussion and possible approval regarding the District’s Annual PSPRS Pension 
Funding Policy #2019-02 (House Bill 2097) effective on July 1, 2019.  (BOD #2019-02-10) 

 
12. Reports. (BOD #2019-02-11) 

Senior Leadership Team (SLT): 
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
Assistant Chief of Emergency Operations Richard Mooney 
Assistant Chief of Planning & Logistics Richard Ochs 
Administrative Services Director Anna Butel  
Finance Director Roger Wood 

 

13. Executive Session for discussing the Bourgeois letter.  The Board may vote to go into 
executive session pursuant to §ARS 38-431.03(A)(3) for discussion or consultation for 
legal advice and possible instructions to the District’s attorney relating to the same 
pursuant to §ARS 38-431.03(A)(4). (BOD #2019-02-12) 

Note: Executive Sessions are confidential pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(C).  
Note: Legal action involving a final vote or decision shall not be taken at an executive 
session. 

 

14. Possible instructions to legal counsel regarding the Bourgeois letter. (BOD #2019-02-13) 

 
15. New Business / Future Agenda Items. (BOD #2019-02-14) 

 
16. Announcements (BOD #2019-02-N/A) 

 
17. Adjourn (BOD #2019-02-15 ) 

  
 
 
 
 
NOTICE: The Governing Board may go into executive session for the purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Fire District's 
attorney(s) on any of the above agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3). 
One or more members of the Governing Board may attend the meeting telephonically. 
Governing Board meeting agenda dated and posted (at least 24-hours before the scheduled meeting date and time). 
 
Posted on: February 14, 2019 
At:   1500 Hours 
By:   Sherry Mueller 
   
The Superstition Fire & Medical District (SFMD) Administrative Office Board Meeting Room is accessible to the handicapped. In 
compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), those with special needs, such as large-type face print or other reasonable 
accommodations may request those through the SFMD Administration Office (480-982-4440) at least 24-hours before the Board 
Meeting. 
 

  



Go To Item 2 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: 1 
BOD#: 2019-02-01 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Review and approval of the January 2019 financial reports and bank reconciliations. 
 
Submitted By 
Finance Director Roger Wood 
 
Background/Discussion 
The District’s accounting department staff prepares the monthly financial reports. The District’s annual budget, 
which is adopted by the Board each June for the following fiscal year (July 1 – June 30), is formatted to mirror 
the monthly financial statements. The financial reports provide the Board with a monthly recap of expenditures 
and revenues, along with year-to-date account balance information.  
 
In compliance with A.R.S. §48-807(O), the following reports have been added to the monthly financial 
statements packet:  

1. Cash Flow – All Governmental Funds. 
The Cash Flow report consists of the combined cash balances of all District Funds. These balances include 
the General (100), Transport Services (150), Capital Projects (200), Bond Proceeds (300), Special Revenue 
(400), Debt Principal (500), and Debt Interest (600) Funds. The Cash Flow report is updated monthly with 
the actual revenues deposited into and actual expenditures disbursed from the District’s cash accounts. 
It is important to note the revenues and expenditures are reported on a Cash Basis. This report is 
generated to demonstrate that the fire District maintains sufficient cash available to satisfy the projected 
expenditures budgeted over the course of the fiscal year.  

2. Fund Account Bank Reconciliations. 
The reconciliation of each of the District’s Fund Cash Accounts (General (100), Transport Services (150), 
Capital Projects (200), Bond Proceeds (300), Special Revenue (400), Debt Principal (500), and Debt 
Interest (600) Funds) between the Pinal County Treasurer’s monthly bank statement and the District’s 
Fund balance sheet report is provided. To signify Board approval of the monthly financial statements 
and bank reconciliations, the Board Chairman is requested to sign the attached Letter of Acceptance 
which will be kept on file at the District.  

 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
N/A  
 
Enclosure(s) 
January 2019 Letter of Acceptance (for signature) 

*Monthly Financials provided under separate cover 
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion to approve the January 2019 financial reports and bank reconciliations.” 

 



January 2019 

 

 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 

Governing Board Acceptance of Fire District’s 
Financial Statements and Bank Reconciliations 

 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §48-807, by the signature(s) below, the Governing Board of the Superstition Fire & Medical 
District attests to the review and approval of the following financial report(s) of the fire district for the month 
of January 2019: 
 

1. Financial Statement 
2. Bank Reconciliations 

a. General (100) Fund 
b. Transport Services (150) Fund 
c. Capital Projects (200) Fund 
d. Bond Proceeds (300) Fund 
e. Special Projects (400) Fund 
f. Debt Principle (500) Fund 
g. Debt Interest (600) Fund 

 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
Todd House, Board Chair  Date 



Go to Item 3 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: 2 
BOD#: 2019-02-02 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Recognition of employee performance, achievements, and special recognition for community members. 
 
Submitted By 
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
Assistant Chief Rick Ochs 
 
Background/Discussion 
This is a recurring monthly item to provide the Board with information concerning superior employee 
performance, achievements, and special recognition for community members.  
 
** Special Recognition of Mike Gregorie, Retired from SFMD 
 
** Special Recognition of Troy Mullender, AJPD 
 
February Service Anniversaries 
 
29 Years of Service: 
Fire Captain / Paramedic Paul Perkins 
 
19 Years of Service: 
Administrative Services Director Anna Butel 
Fire Captain / Paramedic Carlos Rivera 
 
10 Years of Service: 
Fleet Services Manager Vaughn Croshaw 
 
6 Years of Service:  
Firefighter / Paramedic Dave Endres 
Firefighter Monte Fuller 
Firefighter / Paramedic Chris Furgeson 
Firefighter Anthony Martinez 
 
3 Years of Service: 
EMS Coordinator Eileen Blackstone 
Human Resources Generalist Sherry Mueller 
 
1 Year of Service: 
Paramedic Crystal Martin 
 
 



Go to Item 4 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: 3 
BOD#: 2019-02-n/a 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Call to the Public  
 
A.R.S. §38-431.01(H) 
A public body may make an open call to the public during a public meeting, subject to reasonable time, place 
and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of 
the public body. 
At the conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the public body may respond to criticism 
made by those who have addressed the public body, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.   
However, members of the public body shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call 
to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Background / Discussion 
Call to the Public is provided so citizens may address the public body (Governing Board) with matters concerning 
the fire district. Arizona public meeting law provides that the public body may discuss, consider, or decide only 
matters listed on the agenda and other matters related thereto. Since the public body will generally not know 
what specific matters may be raised at call to the public, they will be unable to act until the matter is placed on 
a subsequent meeting agenda (at the Board’s discretion). The Board may also direct staff to follow up on the 
issue with the citizen.  
 
Scheduled 
None  
 



Go to Item 5 
 

Go to Appendices 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019  
Agenda Item: 4 
BOD#: 2019-02-03 
    
Agenda Item Title 
Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items as listed below:  

A. Board Meeting Minutes from January 16, 2019 – Appendix A 

B. Work Session Minutes from January 28, 2019 – Appendix B 

C. Renewal of Contract for Property and Casualty Insurance Service – Appendix C 

 
 
Background/Discussion 
The consent agenda allows the Board of Directors (BOD) to consider contracts, purchases, and other routine 
administrative matters having authorized funding within the current fiscal year budget as a single decision. Items 
may be withdrawn from the consent agenda and discussed separately upon request by any member of the BOD 
or staff. Information for each consent agenda item and corresponding supporting document is within the packet.  
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion to approve the consent agenda items for February 20, 2019.” 

 



Go To Item 6 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: # 5 
BOD#: 2019-02-04 

Agenda Item Title:  Discussion of the 2019 Fire District Tax Abstract / Levy Limit Worksheet for Pinal and Maricopa 
counties, and its impact on the development of the Fiscal Year 2019 / 2020 Revenue Budget. 
 
Submitted By:   Fire Chief Mike Farber 
 
Background/Discussion:  
The Combined Pinal County & Maricopa County Fire District Levy Limit Worksheet (Tax Abstract) for FY 2019 / 2020 was 
delivered on February 8.  A summary of the District’s Net Assessed Valuation (NAV) and its impact on the property tax 
revenues for FY 2019 / 2020 is as follows: 
 
           Pinal Maricopa       Total % Increase (Decrease) 
Centrally Assessed Property    10,180,572          25    10,180,597     (6.02%) 
Locally Assessed Property    30,524,145 144,616   30,668,761      8.70% 
Locally Assessed Personal Property 365,438,787 289,036 365,727,823      5.34% 
 Total    406,143,504 433,677 406,577,181      5.26% 
 
 
At the current tax rate of $3.25 per $100 of Net Assessed Value, the NAV increase results in an additional $650,263 in 
tax revenues for the General (100) Fund.   
 
At the current special assessment rate of $0.25 per $100 of NAV, the NAV increase results in an additional $50,472 in tax 
revenues for the Capital Replacement (200) Fund. 
 
The District Salt River Project (SRP) NAV is still not known. 
 
Recommended Motion:   For informational purposes only – no Board action required. 
 
Financial Impact:  For FY 2018 / 2019 Budgeting purposes for the General (100) and Capital Replacement (200) Funds. 
 
Enclosures:   2019 Combined Pinal County & Maricopa County Fire District Levy Limit (Tax Abstract) 
 
 
 

Recommended Motion 
N/A 

 



Go To Item 7 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: #6 
BOD#: 2019-02-05 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Discussion and possible approval of Resolution #2019-02-20-01 for the annexation of the Kauffman Homes 
two-parcel properties.   
 
Submitted By 
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
 
Background/Discussion 
This annexation will bring nearly $100,000 revenue from the increased Net Assessed Valuation for the District. 
Once the Board approves the annexation request, the property will become part of the District after 30 days. 
At that point, the annexation will be recorded by the county.  
 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
 
Enclosure(s) 
Resolution #2019-02-20-01  
 
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion to approve Resolution #2019-02-20-01 for the annexation of the Kauffman Homes two-parcel 
properties” 
 

 















Go To Item 8 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: #7 
BOD#: 2019-02-06 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Discussion and possible approval of annexation of The Arizonian properties. 
 
Submitted By 
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
 
Background/Discussion 
Staff is requesting direction from the Board regarding potential annexation of The Arizonian properties.  In 
recent months, efforts have been made to convince the owner to seek annexation in to the District, but that 
has not happened yet.  If the owner resists annexation, Staff is recommending notifying the owner that SFMD 
will stop services in 90 days after receipt of notification letter.  Also, to discuss and possibly approve direct 
billing of individuals residing at The Arizonian who are utilizing our services if annexation is not successful. 
 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s) 
N/A 
 
 

Recommended Motion 
“TBD.” 
 

 



Go To Item 9 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: #8 
BOD#: 2019-02-07 
 
Agenda Item Title 
SFMD Policy Manual – Policies reviewed in January. 
 
Submitted By 
Mike Farber, Fire Chief 
Anna Butel, Administrative Services Director 
 
Background/Discussion 
In the January Board of Directors meeting, the following policies were submitted for review:  
 

1. 201 Emergency Action Plan and Fire Prevention 
2. 210 Solicitation of Funds 
3. 318 Safe Haven Newborn Law 
4. 321 Scene Preservation 
5. 322 Child Abuse 
6. 323 Disposition of Valuables 
7. 324 Carrying Weapons on-Duty 
8. 325 Performance of Duties 
9. 326 Adult Abuse 
10. 327 Traffic Collisions 
11. 328 Line-of-Duty Death and Serious Injury Investigations 
12. 329 National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) 
13. 332 Grocery Shopping On-Duty 

These are essential policies and are part of the comprehensive Lexipol/SFMD policy manual.  
 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
NA  
 
Enclosure(s) 
  
 
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion to approve policies:  Emergency Action Plan & Fire Prevention, Solicitation of Funds, Safe Haven 
Newborn Law, Scene Preservation, Child Abuse, Disposition of Valuables, Carrying Weapons on-Duty, 
Performance of Duties, Adult Abuse, Traffic Collisions, Line-of-Duty Death & Serious Injury Investigations, 
National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) and Grocery Shopping On-Duty. “ 
 

 



Go To Item 10 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – January 16, 2019 
Agenda Item: #9 
BOD#: 2019-01-08 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Policy Review – For possible approval in the March 2019 Board of Director Meeting.  
 
Submitted By 
Mike Farber, Fire Chief 
Anna Butel, Administrative Services Director 
 
Background/Discussion 
As you are aware, SFMD is currently creating a new policy manual through the implementation of Lexipol. 
After your review, we will be seeking approval in the February meeting. Although, these policies require board 
approval they will not go into effect until the completion of the policy manual. Ideally, we do not want to 
burden the board with a large manual that requires approval all at once, and we want to avoid membership 
confusion by having only manual.  
 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
NA 
 
Enclosure(s) 

• 1000 – Recruitment and Selection 
• 1002 – Promotions and Transfers 
• 1003 – Positions 
• 1004 – Classification Specifications 
• 1006 – Fire Officer Development 
• 1007 – Educational Incentives 
• 1010 – Emergency Recall 
• 1012 – Discriminatory Harassment 
• 1013 – Conduct and Behavior 

 

 
 

Recommended Motion 
No motion at this time. 
 

 
 

 

 



Policy

1000
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Recruitment and Selection - 1

Recruitment and Selection
1000.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to establish the recruiting, selection, training and retention processes
utilized by the Superstition Fire & Medical District. This policy supplements any rules that govern
employment practices for the Superstition Fire & Medical District.

1000.2   POLICY
Best Practice

In accordance with applicable federal, state and local law, the Superstition Fire & Medical District
provides equal opportunities for applicants and district members regardless of race, gender
expression, age, pregnancy, religion, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical or mental
handicap, genetic information, veteran status, marital status, sex or any other protected class or
status. The District does not show partiality or grant any special status to any applicant, member
or group of members, unless otherwise required by law.

1000.3   RECRUITMENT
Best Practice  MODIFIED

The Administrative Services Division should employ a comprehensive recruitment and selection
strategy to recruit and select members from a qualified and diverse pool of candidates.

The strategy should include:

(a) Identification of racially and culturally diverse target markets.

(b) Use of marketing strategies to target diverse applicant pools.

(c) Expanded use of technology and maintenance of a strong internet presence. This
may include an interactive district website and the use of district-managed social
networking sites, if resources permit.

(d) Expanded outreach through partnerships with media, community groups, citizen
academies, local colleges, universities and the military.

(e) Member referral.

(f) Consideration of shared or collaborative regional testing processes.

The Administrative Services Division shall avoid advertising, recruiting and screening practices
that tend to stereotype, focus on homogeneous applicant pools or screen applicants in a
discriminatory manner.

The District should strive to facilitate and expedite the screening and testing process, and should
periodically inform each candidate of his/her status in the recruiting process.

1000.4   SELECTION PROCESS
Best Practice  MODIFIED



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Recruitment and Selection

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Recruitment and Selection - 2

The District shall actively strive to identify a diverse group of candidates that have in some manner
distinguished themselves as being outstanding prospects. Minimally, the District should employ
a comprehensive screening, background investigation and selection process that assesses
cognitive and physical abilities and includes review and verification of the following:

• A comprehensive application for employment (including previous employment,
references, current and prior addresses, education, military record)

• Driving record

• Reference checks

• Employment eligibility, including U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS)
Employment Eligibility Verification Form I-9 and acceptable identity and employment
authorization documents (documentation may be requested upon hire)

• Information obtained from public internet sites

• Financial history consistent with the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA) and Arizona law
(15 USC § 1681 et seq.; ARS § 44-1692)

• Local, state and federal criminal history record checks

• Polygraph or computer voice stress analyzer (CVSA) examination (when legally
permissible)

• Medical, pre-employment drug screening, and psychological examination (may only
be given after a conditional offer of employment)

• Review board or selection committee assessment

1000.4.1   VETERAN PREFERENCE
State

The District will provide veteran preference points as required (ARS § 38-492).

1000.5   BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION
Best Practice

Every candidate shall undergo a thorough background investigation to verify his/her personal
integrity and high ethical standards, and to identify any past behavior that may be indicative of
the candidate’s unsuitability to perform duties relevant to the operation of the Superstition Fire &
Medical District.

1000.5.1   NOTICES
Federal  MODIFIED

The Administrative Services Division shall ensure that investigations are conducted and notices
provided in accordance with the requirements of the FCRA and the Arizona consumer reporting
law (15 USC § 1681d; ARS § 44-1693).

1000.5.2   CRIMINAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Best Practice



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Recruitment and Selection

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Recruitment and Selection - 3

Criminal background information, whether directly from the Arizona Department of Public Safety
Criminal History Records Section or provided by a third party, may have restrictions on the access,
use, security and release of the information. The Administrative Services Division shall establish
procedures to ensure compliance with any applicable requirements and security limitations.

1000.5.3   REVIEW OF SOCIAL MEDIA SITES
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Due to the potential for accessing unsubstantiated, private or protected information, the
Administrative Services Division should not require candidates to provide passwords, account
information or access to password-protected social media accounts.

The Administrative Services Director should consider utilizing the services of an appropriately
trained and experienced third party to conduct open source, internet-based searches and/or
review information from social media sites to ensure that:

• The legal rights of candidates are protected.

• Material and information to be considered are verified, accurate and validated.

• The District fully complies with applicable privacy protections and local, state and
federal law.

Regardless of whether a third party is used, the Administrative Services Director   should ensure
that potentially impermissible information is not available to any person involved in the candidate
selection process.

1000.5.4   RECORDS RETENTION
Best Practice

The background report and all supporting documentation shall be maintained in accordance with
the established records retention schedule.

1000.5.5   DOCUMENTING AND REPORTING
Best Practice

The background investigator shall summarize the results of the background investigation in a
report that includes sufficient information to allow the reviewing authority to decide whether to
extend a conditional offer of employment. The report shall not include any information that is
prohibited from use, including that from social media sites, in making employment decisions.
The report and all supporting documentation shall be included in the candidate’s background
investigation file.

1000.6   DISQUALIFICATION GUIDELINES
Best Practice

As a general rule, performance indicators and candidate information and records shall be
evaluated by considering the candidate as a whole, and taking into consideration the following:

• Age at the time the behavior occurred

• Passage of time



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Recruitment and Selection

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Recruitment and Selection - 4

• Patterns of past behavior

• Severity of behavior

• Probable consequences if past behavior is repeated or made public

• Likelihood of recurrence

• Relevance of past behavior to public safety employment

• Aggravating and mitigating factors

• Other relevant considerations

A candidate’s qualifications will be assessed on a case-by-case basis, using a totality-of-the-
circumstances framework.

1000.7   EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS
Best Practice

All candidates shall meet the minimum standards required by state law. Candidates will be
evaluated based on merit, ability, competence and experience, in accordance with the high
standards of integrity and ethics valued by the District and the community.

Validated, job-related and nondiscriminatory employment standards shall be established for
each job classification and shall minimally identify the training, abilities, knowledge and
skills required to perform the position’s essential duties in a satisfactory manner (see the
Position Descriptions Policy). Each standard should include performance indicators for candidate
evaluation. The Department of Human Resources should maintain validated standards for all
positions.

Selection standards for promotional opportunities are detailed in the Promotions and Transfers
Policy.

1000.7.1   STANDARDS FOR FIREFIGHTERS
Best Practice

Generally, the standards may include the following requirements. The candidate should:

(a) Be at least 18 years of age by the closing date of the recruitment period.

(b) Be in possession of a high school diploma or a General Equivalency Diploma (GED).

(c) Have good vision in both eyes, with the ability to distinguish Occupational Safety and
Health Administration (OSHA) color codes for hazardous materials (e.g., blue, red,
yellow, white), and have no depth or peripheral vision impairment.

(d) Meet the objectives and minimum standards established in the International
Association of Fire Chiefs (IAFC)/International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) Fire
Service Joint Labor Management Wellness-Fitness Initiative or similar validated health
screening process.

(e) Meet the minimum standards established by the National Fire Protection Association
(NFPA).



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Recruitment and Selection

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Recruitment and Selection - 5

(f) Be in possession of, or have the ability to obtain, a valid state driver license in the
class required for the position sought.

(g) Be a U.S. citizen or have proof of a legal right to work in the U.S.

1000.8   TRAINING
Best Practice

All entry-level firefighter candidates should complete training in an accredited fire training program
established by the Arizona Center for Fire Service Excellence.

1000.9   RETENTION
Best Practice

The primary focus should be on hiring those who are the best fit for a particular position. In order
to retain quality members, the District should:

• Seek member input on retention strategies.

• Develop a workplace that respects, encourages and enables a work/life balance.

• Facilitate training and career development opportunities.

• Develop and maintain quality supervisors.

• Provide regular and meaningful performance feedback.

• Promote an environment where members are able to speak freely.

• Treat members fairly, equitably and consistently.

• Consider ways to reward excellent performance.

• Follow up on any feedback acquired during an exit interview process.

Retention incentives may include items from a collective bargaining agreement, employment
benefits, seniority benefits, forms of recognition, etc.



Policy

1002
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/30, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Promotions and Transfers - 1

Promotions and Transfers
1002.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Discretionary

The purpose of this policy is to establish required and desirable qualifications for promotion and
transfer within the ranks of the Superstition Fire & Medical District.

1002.2   POLICY
Discretionary  MODIFIED

The Superstition Fire & Medical District provides equal employment opportunities for employees
regardless of race, sexual orientation, age, pregnancy, religion, creed, color, national origin,
ancestry, physical or mental handicap, veteran status, marital status or sex. It is the policy of
the Superstition Fire & Medical District to utilize the promotional testing criteria, study materials
and testing instruments available from authenticated and validated local, regional and nationally
recognized best practices in the fire service. This policy will establish the required and desirable
qualifications for promotion and transfer within the ranks of the District based on this criteria.

Nothing in this policy is intended to supersede any contract language related to promotional
requirements that may exist in a memorandum of understanding.

1002.3   GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
Discretionary  MODIFIED

The following conditions will be used in evaluating members for promotion and transfer:

(a) Presents a professional, and neat appearance.

(b) Demonstrates the following traits:

1. Emotional stability and maturity

2. Stress tolerance

3. Sound judgment and decision-making ability

4. Personal integrity and ethical conduct

5. Leadership

6. Initiative

7. Adaptability and flexibility

8. Ability to conform to organizational goals and objectives in a positive manner

1002.4   TRANSFERS
Discretionary  MODIFIED

The following position is defined as a transfer and is not considered a promotion:

• Training Officer



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Promotions and Transfers

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/30, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Promotions and Transfers - 2

• Battalion Safety Officer

1002.4.1   DESIRABLE TRANSFER QUALIFICATIONS
Discretionary

The following qualifications are considered for transfer:

• Three years of experience

• Completion of the probationary period with the Superstition Fire & Medical District

• Expressed interest in the transfer position

• Education, training and demonstrated abilities in areas related to the transfer position

• Completion of any local, regional or national training or certification for the transfer
position

1002.4.2   TRANSFER CRITERIA
Discretionary  MODIFIED

The following criteria apply to transfers:

(a) Administrative evaluation as determined by the Fire Chief. This shall include a review
of supervisor recommendations. Each supervisor who has supervised or otherwise
been involved with the candidate should submit these recommendations.

(b) The supervisor recommendations should be submitted to the Assistant Chief/Director
for whom the candidate will work. The Assistant Chief/Director should schedule
interviews with each candidate.

(c) Based on supervisor recommendations and those of the Assistant Chief/Director after
the interview, the Assistant Chief/Director should submit his/her recommendation to
the Fire Chief.

(d) Transfers will be made by the Fire Chief.

(e) Members transferred from a 56 hour schedule to a 40 hour schedule are entitled to
incentive pay.

Position 5.5% Annual Incentive

Firefighter $3,574.39

Engineer $4,163.29

Captain $4,828.14

The policy and procedures for all positions may be waived for temporary assignments,
for emergency situations or for training in accordance with any applicable memorandum of
understanding.

1002.5   PROMOTIONS
Discretionary

Specifications for promotional opportunities are on file with the Superstition Fire & Medical District.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Promotions and Transfers

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/30, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Promotions and Transfers - 3

1002.6   TRAINING OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES
Discretionary

It is the responsibility of the Training Officer to maintain a training file on each member of the
District. Any relevant training certificate or certification document submitted to the District by a
member should be permanently retained in the member’s training file.



Policy

1003
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Position Descriptions - 1

Position Descriptions
1003.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to establish a comprehensive description of overall duties and
responsibilities of each rank or job classification within the District.

1003.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to develop unique position descriptions
for each assignment within an established rank or classification.

1003.3   PROCEDURE
Best Practice  MODIFIED

The Department of Human Resources will generally develop and maintain classification
specifications (e.g., firefighter, Captain, Battalion Chief). Within the classification specifications
there may be multiple assignments. The descriptions will detail the unique duties and
responsibilities of each assignment.

Position descriptions may be included in a memorandum of understanding.

Position descriptions should be considered living documents and should be reviewed and
evaluated for modification. This should occur at least annually and any time duties or expectations
of a specific position substantially change.

Position descriptions should be reviewed prior to hiring to ensure the candidate’s knowledge, skills
and abilities are consistent with the current performance expectations of the position.



Policy

1004
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Classification Specifications - 1

Classification Specifications
1004.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to establish the origin and maintenance processes of the job
classifications applicable to the Superstition Fire & Medical District.

1004.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to coordinate with the Department of
Human Resources for the development of job classifications unique to the District.



Policy

1006
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Fire Officer Development - 1

Fire Officer Development
1006.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Discretionary

The purpose of this policy is to outline the required and recommended competencies in the
Superstition Fire & Medical District’s fire officer development program.

1006.2   POLICY
Discretionary

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to use professionally recognized programs
and resources to train and develop members for supervisory roles.

1006.3   RESOURCES
Discretionary

To assist members in developing the needed competencies for supervisory roles, the Superstition
Fire & Medical District will utilize such resources as:

• The Arizona Center for Fire Service Excellence.

• The Arizona Fire Chiefs Association Fire and EMS Leadership Conference.

• The Arizona State University (ASU) Certified Public Manager Program.

• The ASU Management and Leadership Institute.

• The Center for Public Safety Excellence's (CPSE) Fire Officer Designation (FO).

• The National Fire Academy’s (NFA) Executive Fire Officer Program (EFOP).

• The National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 1021, Standard for Fire Officer
Professional Qualifications.

• The International Association of Fire Chiefs' (IAFC) Officer Development Handbook.

• Other district-approved certification programs for the professional development of fire
officers.



Policy

1007
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Educational Incentives - 1

Educational Incentives
1007.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Discretionary  MODIFIED

The purpose of this policy is to identify the educational incentives available to Superstition Fire
& Medical District members pursuant to the memorandum of understanding or the established
personnel agreement, and to establish a system of accessing the benefits.

1007.2   POLICY
Discretionary  MODIFIED

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District that the educational incentives established
in the memorandum of understanding or the established personnel agreement shall be available
to all members who meet the defined requirements.

Incentive (Full Time) Annual Amount

Paramedic (Public Safety Only) $7,500.00

Technical Rescue Team  (Public Safety Only) $1,800.00

SCBA (Public Safety Only) $1,800.00

Battalion Safety Officer (Public Safety Only) $2,100.00

  

Educational Incentive Annual Amount

Certificate of Completion (Position Specific) $600.00

College Degree $1,200.00



Policy

1010
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Emergency Recall - 1

Emergency Recall
1010.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to establish the right of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to recall
off-duty employees in the event of a large-scale or protracted emergency, natural disaster or other
unusual situation that depletes on-duty resources. The policy also establishes the procedures to
be used to recall off-duty employees, in accordance with state and federal laws and collective
bargaining agreements.

1010.1.1   DEFINITIONS
Best Practice

Definitions related to this policy include:

Automatic aid - Apparatus and firefighters who are dispatched automatically by contractual
agreement between two fire departments, communities or fire districts.

Mutual aid - Apparatus and firefighters who are dispatched, upon request, by the responding fire
department. Mutual aid is defined by a signed contractual agreement between the Superstition
Fire & Medical District and neighboring jurisdictions.

1010.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to provide sufficient resources at the scene
of an emergency to reasonably provide for the safety of the employees working at the scene, and
to ensure adequate resources are available for additional emergency calls. In some instances,
this may require the emergency recall of employees.

1010.3   PROCEDURES
Best Practice

The Fire Chief or any other chief officer, Battalion Chief or Incident Commander (IC) may initiate
an emergency recall by providing the Dispatch Center or other designated resource with brief
information regarding the emergency, where members are to report for duty and the name or
names of personnel required.

1010.3.1   TRIGGERING INCIDENTS
Best Practice

The types of incidents that may require the initiation of an emergency recall include, but are not
limited to:

• One major incident affecting a localized or widespread area.

• Two or more incidents causing a high demand for resources at different locations.

• Numerous incidents causing a peak demand on the entire resource system.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Emergency Recall

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/01/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Emergency Recall - 2

• Any time designated by the Fire Chief or the authorized designee.

1010.3.2   THE DISPATCH CENTER RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice

The Fire Chief or the authorized designee should be responsible for developing and implementing
an emergency recall procedure that complies with state and federal laws and collective bargaining
agreements. Dispatch or the other designated resource should follow the established procedure
when implementing an emergency recall.

1010.3.3   FIREFIGHTER RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Firefighters should reply to an emergency recall immediately or provide notification within 30
minutes with their status and estimated time of arrival. If applicable, they should report for duty
with their personal protective equipment.

1010.3.4   EXCEPTIONS
Best Practice

Members may not refuse an emergency recall notice. Firefighters who receive an emergency
recall notification and are under the influence of any impairment, such as medications or alcohol,
should advise the caller of the impairment and should not report for duty.

1010.4   OTHER RESOURCES
Best Practice

If sufficient resources cannot be assembled by an emergency recall, the District may consider
other options such as:

• Automatic aid

• Mutual aid

• Additional chief officers



Policy

1012
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Discriminatory Harassment - 1

Discriminatory Harassment
1012.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Federal

This policy is intended to prevent district members from being subjected to discrimination or sexual
harassment. Nothing in this policy is intended to create a legal or employment right or duty that
is not created by law.

1012.2   POLICY
Federal

The Superstition Fire & Medical District is an equal opportunity employer and is committed to
creating and maintaining a work environment that is free of all forms of discriminatory harassment,
including sexual harassment and retaliation. The District will not tolerate discrimination against
a member in hiring, promotion, discharge, compensation, fringe benefits and other privileges of
employment. The District will take preventive and corrective action to address any behavior that
violates this policy or the rights it is designed to protect.

The nondiscrimination policies of the District may be more comprehensive than state or federal
law. Conduct that violates this policy may not violate state or federal law but still could subject a
member to discipline.

1012.3   DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED
Federal

1012.3.1   DISCRIMINATION
Federal

The District prohibits all forms of discrimination, including any employment-related action by a
member that adversely affects an applicant or member and is based on race, color, religion, sex,
age, national origin or ancestry, genetic information, disability, military service, sexual orientation
and other classifications protected by law (ARS § 41-1463).

Discriminatory harassment, including sexual harassment, is verbal or physical conduct that
demeans or shows hostility or aversion toward an individual based upon that individual’s protected
class. It has the effect of interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating a hostile or
abusive work environment.

Conduct that may, under certain circumstances, constitute discriminatory harassment can include:
making derogatory comments, crude and offensive statements or remarks; making slurs or
off-color jokes; stereotyping; engaging in threatening acts; making indecent gestures, pictures,
cartoons, posters or material; making inappropriate physical contact; or using written material or
district equipment and/or systems to transmit or receive offensive material, statements or pictures.
Such conduct is contrary to district policy and to a work environment that is free of discrimination.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Discriminatory Harassment - 2

1012.3.2   RETALIATION
Federal

Retaliation is treating a person differently or engaging in acts of reprisal or intimidation against
the person because he/she has engaged in protected activity, filed a charge of discrimination,
participated in an investigation or opposed a discriminatory practice.

Retaliation will not be tolerated (see the Anti-Retaliation Policy).

1012.3.3   SEXUAL HARASSMENT
Federal

The District prohibits all forms of discrimination and discriminatory harassment, including sexual
harassment. It is unlawful to harass an applicant or a member because of that person’s sex.

Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors or other verbal, visual or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

(a) Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition
of employment, position or compensation.

(b) Submission to, or rejection of, such conduct is used as the basis for any employment
decisions affecting the member.

(c) Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with a member's
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

1012.3.4   ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS
Federal

Discrimination and discriminatory harassment do not include actions that are in accordance with
established rules, principles or standards, including:

(a) Acts or omission of acts based solely upon bona fide occupational qualifications under
the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and the Arizona Civil Rights Act
guidelines.

(b) Bona fide requests or demands by a supervisor that a member improve his/her work
quality or output, that the member report to the job site on time, that the member
comply with District or district rules or regulations, or any other appropriate work-
related communication between supervisor and member.

1012.4   RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice

This policy applies to all district members who shall follow the intent of these guidelines in a manner
that reflects district policy and the best interest of the Superstition Fire & Medical District and its
mission.

Members are encouraged to promptly report any discriminatory, retaliatory or harassing conduct
or known violations of this policy to a supervisor. Any member who is not comfortable with reporting
violations of this policy to his/her immediate supervisor may bypass the chain of command and



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Discriminatory Harassment - 3

make the report to a higher ranking supervisor or manager. Complaints may also be filed with the
Fire Chief, the Administrative Services Director or the Fire Board of Directors.

Any member who believes, in good faith, that he/she has been discriminated against, harassed
or subjected to retaliation, or who has observed harassment or discrimination, is encouraged to
promptly report such conduct in accordance with the procedures set forth in this policy.

Supervisors and managers receiving information regarding alleged violations of this policy shall
determine if there is any basis for the allegation and shall proceed with resolution as stated below.

1012.4.1   QUESTIONS OR CLARIFICATION
Best Practice

Members with questions regarding discrimination or sexual harassment are encouraged to contact
a supervisor, a manager, the Fire Chief, the Administrative Services Director or the Fire Board of
Directors for further information, direction or clarification.

1012.4.2   SUPERVISOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Best Practice

Each supervisor and manager shall:

(a) Continually monitor the work environment and strive to ensure that it is free from all
types of unlawful discrimination, including harassment or retaliation.

(b) Take prompt, appropriate action within their work units to avoid and minimize the
incidence of any form of discrimination, harassment or retaliation.

(c) Ensure that subordinates understand their responsibilities under this policy.

(d) Ensure that members who make complaints or who oppose any unlawful employment
practices are protected from retaliation and that such matters are kept confidential to
the extent possible.

(e) Notify the Fire Chief or Administrative Services Director in writing of the circumstances
surrounding any reported allegations or observed acts of discrimination, harassment
or retaliation no later than the next business day.

1012.4.3   SUPERVISOR’S ROLE
Best Practice

Because of differences in individual values, supervisors and managers may find it difficult to
recognize that their behavior or the behavior of others is discriminatory, harassing or retaliatory.
Supervisors and managers shall be aware of the following considerations:

(a) Behavior of supervisors and managers should represent the values of the District.

(b) False or mistaken accusations of discrimination, harassment or retaliation can have
negative effects on the careers of innocent members.

(c) Supervisors and managers must act promptly and responsibly in the resolution of such
situations.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Discriminatory Harassment - 4

(d) Supervisors and managers shall make a timely determination regarding the substance
of any allegation based upon all available facts.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent supervisors or managers from discharging
supervisory or management responsibilities, such as determining duty assignments, evaluating
or counseling members or issuing discipline in a manner that is consistent with established
procedures.

1012.5   INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS
Best Practice

Various methods of resolution exist. During the pendency of any such investigation, the supervisor
of the involved member or members should take prompt and reasonable steps to mitigate or
eliminate any continuing abusive or hostile work environment. It is the policy of the Superstition
Fire & Medical District that all complaints of discrimination, retaliation or harassment shall be fully
documented and promptly and thoroughly investigated. The participating or opposing member
should be protected against retaliation, and the complaint and related investigation should be kept
confidential to the extent possible.

1012.5.1   SUPERVISORY RESOLUTION
Best Practice

Members who believe they are experiencing discrimination, harassment or retaliation should be
encouraged to inform the individual that his/her behavior is unwelcome, offensive, unprofessional
or inappropriate. However, if the member feels uncomfortable or threatened or has difficulty
expressing his/her concern, or if this does not resolve the concern, assistance should be sought
from a supervisor or manager who is a rank higher than the alleged transgressor.

1012.5.2   FORMAL INVESTIGATION
Best Practice

If the complaint cannot be satisfactorily resolved through the supervisory resolution process, a
formal investigation will be conducted.

The person assigned to investigate the complaint will have full authority to investigate all aspects
of the complaint. Investigative authority includes access to records and the cooperation of any
members involved. No influence will be used to suppress any complaint and no member will be
subject to retaliation or reprisal for filing a complaint, encouraging others to file a complaint, or
offering testimony or evidence in any investigation.

Formal investigation of the complaint will be confidential to the extent possible and will include,
but is not limited to, details of the specific incident, frequency, dates of occurrences and names
of any witnesses. Witnesses will be advised regarding the prohibition against retaliation, and that
a disciplinary process, up to and including termination, may result if retaliation occurs.

Members who believe they have been discriminated against, harassed or retaliated against
because of their protected status are encouraged to follow the chain of command but may also



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Discriminatory Harassment - 5

file a complaint directly with the Fire Chief, the Administrative Services Director or the Fire Board
of Directors.

1012.5.3   ALTERNATIVE COMPLAINT PROCESS
Best Practice

No provision of this policy shall be construed to prevent any member from seeking legal redress
outside the District. Members who believe that they have been harassed, discriminated or
retaliated against are entitled to bring complaints of employment discrimination to federal, state
and/or local agencies responsible for investigating such allegations. Specific time limitations apply
to the filing of such charges.

Members are advised that proceeding with complaints under the provisions of this policy does not
in any way affect those filing requirements.

1012.6   DOCUMENTATION OF COMPLAINTS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

All complaints or allegations shall be thoroughly documented in a manner designated by the Fire
Chief. The outcome of all reports shall be:

(a) Approved by the Fire Chief, the Fire Board of Directors or the Administrative Services
Director, as deemed appropriate.

(b) Maintained for the period established in the district’s records retention schedule.

1012.6.1   NOTIFICATION OF DISPOSITION
Best Practice

The complainant and/or victim will be notified in writing of the disposition of the investigation and
the action taken to remedy or address the circumstances giving rise to the complaint.

1012.7   TRAINING
Best Practice

All new members shall be provided with a copy of this policy as part of their orientation. The policy
shall be reviewed with each new member. The member shall certify by signing the prescribed form
that he/she has been advised of this policy, is aware of and understands its contents, and agrees
to abide by its provisions during his/her term with the District.

All members shall receive annual training on the requirements of this policy and shall certify by
signing the prescribed form that they have reviewed the policy, understand its contents and agree
that they will continue to abide by its provisions.



Policy

1013
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Conduct and Behavior - 1

Conduct and Behavior
1013.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines to prevent activities or behaviors that may lead
to disciplinary actions or dismissal.

1013.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of this district that its members strive to attain the highest professional standard of
conduct and discharge their duties in a courteous and professional manner.

1013.3   PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT
Best Practice  MODIFIED

All members should be governed by the ordinary and reasonable rules of behavior observed
by law-abiding and self-respecting citizens, and should conduct themselves at all times in such
manner as to reflect favorably on the District. Conduct unbecoming of a member shall include
that which discredits the District or the person as a member of the District or which impairs the
operation or efficiency of the District or its members.

All members should conduct themselves in a manner that will not impair the good order and
discipline of the District. Members should not, while on-duty, indulge in hazing or bullying; verbal
or physical altercations or threats thereof; or conduct which might cause injury to another person.

All members of the District should be familiar with the expected standard of behavior, both on-
and off-duty.

1013.4   INTERACTION WITH THE PUBLIC
Best Practice

In the performance of their duties, members should be courteous to the public and tactful. They
should control their tempers, should exercise reasonable patience and discretion and should not
engage in any argumentative discussions even when provoked.

In the performance of their duties, members should not use coarse, violent, profane or insolent
language or gestures, and should not express prejudice concerning race, religion, politics, sex,
age, physical or mental disability or other medical condition, sexual orientation, marital status,
national origin, lifestyle or similar personal characteristics.

1013.5   COURTESY TO MEMBERS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Members should be courteous and respectful in their relations with all members of the District.
Members should not use coarse, violent, profane or insolent language or gestures toward other
members, and shall not express prejudice concerning race, religion, politics, sex, age, physical



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Conduct and Behavior

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Conduct and Behavior - 2

or mental disability or other medical condition, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin,
lifestyle or similar personal characteristics.

1013.6   CONFORMANCE TO LAWS
Best Practice

Members shall obey all laws of the United States and of any state and local jurisdiction in which
the member is present.

1013.7   DEROGATORY OR MALICIOUS STATEMENTS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Members should not be a party to any malicious gossip, report or activity which would tend to
disrupt district morale or bring discredit to the District or any member thereof. Member questions
concerning district policy, activities, officers and/or safety issues should be submitted to the
member’s immediate supervisor, or their labor representative.

1013.8   POLITICAL ACTIVITY
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Members should not engage in political activities of any kind while on-duty. Members are also
prohibited from engaging in any political activity off-duty while wearing any uniform items or using
equipment that identifies the District.

1013.9   SEXUAL ACTIVITY
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Members should not engage in any sexual activity while on-duty. This includes use of any
electronic device to communicate or receive messages, photos or any other content of a sexual
or provocative nature in the presence of others.

1013.10   ILLEGAL GAMBLING
Best Practice

Members should not engage or participate in any form of illegal gambling at any time while on-
duty. This includes accessing gaming websites from computers or any electronic device, whether
district-issued or owned by the member.

1013.11   GIFTS AND GRATUITIES
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Members should not solicit or accept any gift, including money, tangible or intangible personal
property, or any service, gratuity, favor, entertainment, hospitality, loan, promise, or any other
thing of value from any person, business or organization that is doing business with, or seeking
to do business with, the District.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Conduct and Behavior

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2019/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Conduct and Behavior - 3

If it may reasonably be inferred that the person, business or organization seeks to influence the
actions of a member or seeks to affect the performance of a member while on-duty, the incident
should be immediately reported to the next level supervisor.

1013.12   OFFERS OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS OF THE HEART
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Members who are approached with monetary donations shall direct the person or entity to the
Financial Services Division for instruction on proper ways to donate.

At no time should a member accept any monetary donation from the public. If a citizen offers a
gift of a non-monetary nature, such as food or product, the gift shall be placed in an area of the
station or office to be shared by all members.

At no time shall a member consider a gift of the heart as a personal present.

1013.13   ABUSE OF POSITION
Best Practice

Members should not use their official position, official identification cards or badges to avoid the
consequences of illegal acts or for other non-work-related personal gain. Members shall not lend
to another person their identification cards or badges, or permit their identification cards or badges
to be photographed or reproduced without the approval of the Fire Chief.

Members should not authorize the use of their names, photographs or official titles that identify
them as district members (e.g., in connection with testimonials or advertisements of any
commodity or commercial enterprise) without the approval of the Fire Chief.

1013.14   PUBLIC STATEMENTS AND APPEARANCES
Best Practice

Members should not address public gatherings, appear on radio or television, prepare any
articles for publication, act as correspondents to a newspaper or periodical, or release or divulge
investigative information or information on any other matter of the District while presenting
themselves or in any way identifying themselves as representing the District, without the approval
of the Fire Chief.



Go To Item 11 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: #10 
BOD#: 2019-02-09 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Discussion and possible approval of revising the District’s Earned Leaves – Sick Leave Caps and Payouts policy. 
 
Submitted By 
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
 
Background/Discussion 
As discussed at the Board Work Session held on January 26, 2019, Staff is recommending a revision of the 
District’s Earned Leaves – Sick Leave Caps and Payouts policy to provide for a 100% payout of accrued sick 
leave hours as of an employee’s official retirement date, with retirement being defined as retiring from PSRSP 
or ASRS, and paid out at an average hourly rate of the employee’s last 5 years of service.  This recommended 
change is in light of data indicating that such a change would / could: 
 

1. Eliminate the perceived “loss in value” of accrued sick leave hours that has occurred since the District 
reduced the level of accrued sick leave hours upon retirement from the 100% level to the 50% / 60% 
level depending on an employee’s accrued sick leave hours at retirement. 

2. Potentially increase service levels and reduce overtime costs by lowering absenteeism due to sick 
leave usage. 

Staff recommends the Board approve the revision of the District’s Earned Leaves – Sick Leave Caps and Payout 
policy to provide for 100% payout of accrued sick leave hours upon an employee’s official retirement date, 
with an effective date of this revision being February 21, 2019. 

 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
No projected financial impact in Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 or 2019 / 2020.  The first retirement is currently 
projected to occur in May 2021. 
 
Enclosure(s) 
 N/A 
 
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion to approve revising the District’s Volume 1:  Administrative Policy 102.16 Earned Leaves – Sick Leave 
Caps and Payouts, sections D and E, effective February 21, 2019, to provide for Earned Leave Buy Out payouts 
of 100% of an employee’s accrued sick leave as of the employee’s official retirement date, with retirement 
being defined as retiring from PSPRS or ASRS, and paid out at an average hourly rate of the employee’s last 5 
years of service.” 
 

 



Go To Item 2 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: #11 
BOD#: 2019-02-10 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Superstition Fire & Medical District’s PSPRS Annual Pension Funding Policy #2019-02 
 
Submitted By 
Anna Butel, Administrative Services Director 
Roger Wood, Finance Director 
Mike Farber, Fire Chief  
 
Background/Discussion 
House Bill 2097 Amending Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4, Arizona Revised Statues, By Adding Section 38-863.01; 
Relating to the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System.  
 
38-863.01 Pension Funding Policies: Employers  
 
BEGINNING ON OR BEFORE JULY 1, 2019, EACH GOVERNING BODY OF AN EMPLOYER SHALL ANNUALLY: 
 

1. Adopt a pension funding policy for the system for employees who were hired before July 1, 2017. The 
pension funding policy shall include funding objectives that address at least one of the following; 

a. How to maintain stability of the governing body’s contributions to the system.  
b. How and when the governing body’s funding requirement of the system will be met. 
c. Defining the governing body’s funded ratio target under the system and the timeline for 

reaching the targeted funded ratio. 
2. Formally accept the employer’s share of the assets and liabilities under the system based on the 

system’s actuarial valuation report.  
3. The governing body shall post the pension funding policy on the governing body’s public website.  

 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
Based on the Board’s decision to extend the PSPRS amortization period to 30 years effective July 1, 2017, Staff 
recommends that the Board officially adopt the attached SFMD PSPRS funding policy effective July 1, 2019. 
 
Enclosure(s) 
 PSPRS Annual Pension Funding Policy #2019-02 
 
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion to approve the District’s PSPRS Annual Pension Funding Policy #2019-02 in accordance with House 
Bill 2097 ARS 38-863.01.” 
 

 



 
 

S:\Board Documents\2019\2019-02\Board Packet\11.1 Pension Funding Policy.docx 

SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL DISTRICT 
PUBLIC SAFETY PERSONNEL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

ANNUAL PENSION FUNDING POLICY #2019-02 
 

The intent of this policy is to clearly communicate the Board’s pension funding objectives 
and its commitment to our employees, the sound financial management of the Superstition 
Fire & Medical District, and to comply with new statutory requirements of Laws 2018, 
Chapter 112.  
 
Terms used throughout this policy:  
 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) – Is the difference between trust assets 
and the estimated future cost of pensions earned by employees. This UAAL results from 
actual results (interest earnings, member mortality, disability rates, etc.) being different 
from the assumptions used in previous actuarial valuations.  
 
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) – Is the annual amount required to pay into the 
pension funds, as determined through annual actuarial valuations. It is comprised of two 
primary components: normal pension cost – which is the estimated cost of pension 
benefits earned by employees in the current year; and, amortization of UAAL – which is 
the cost needed to cover the unfunded portion of pensions earned by employees in 
previous years. The UAAL is collected over a period of time referred to as the 
amortization period. The ARC is a percentage of the current payroll.  
 
Funded Ratio – Is a ratio of fund assets to actuarial accrued liability. The higher the 
ratio the better funded the pension is with 100% being fully funded.  
 
Intergenerational equity – Ensures that no generation is burdened by substantially 
more or less pension costs than past or future generations. 

 
The Superstition Fire & Medical District’s public safety employees who are regularly 
assigned hazardous duty participate in the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System 
(PSPRS). 
 
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS)  
 
PSPRS is administered as an agent multiple-employer pension plan. An agent multiple-
employer plan has two main functions:  
1) to commingle assets of all plans under its administration, thus achieving economy of 
scale for more cost efficient investments, and invest those assets for the benefit of all 
members under its administration and;  
2) serve as the statewide uniform administrator for the distribution of benefits.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

S:\Board Documents\2019\2019-02\Board Packet\11.1 Pension Funding Policy.docx 

 
Under an agent multiple-employer plan each agency participating in the plan has an 
individual trust fund reflecting that agencies’ assets and liabilities. Under this plan all 
contributions are deposited to and distributions are made from that fund’s assets, each fund 
has its own funded ratio and contributions are made from that fund’s assets, each fund has 
its own funded ratio and contribution rate, and each fund has a unique annual actuarial 
valuation. The Superstition Fire & Medical District has one trust fund for public safety 
employees.  
 
The Board formally accepts the assets, liabilities, and current funding ratio of the 
Superstition Fire & Medical District’s PSPRS trust funds from the June 30, 2018 actuarial 
valuation, detailed below.  
 

Report Date: June 30, 2018 

Trust Fund Assets Accrued 
Liability 

Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability Funded Ratio 

Tier 1 & 2 $33,979,043 $52,277, 121 $18,298,078 65% 
Tier 3 $1,635,349 $1,831,715 $196,366 89.3% 
Totals $35,614,392 $54,108,836 $18,494,444 65.8% 

 
 
PSPRS Funding Goal  
 
Pensions that are less than fully funded place the cost of service provided in earlier periods 
(amortization of UAAL) on the current taxpayers. Fully funded pension plans are the best 
way to achieve taxpayer and member intergenerational equity. Most funds in PSPRS are 
significantly underfunded and falling well short of the goal of intergenerational equity.  
 
The Board’s PSPRS funding ratio goal is 100% (fully funded) by June 30, 2047.  
The Board established this goal for the following reasons:  
 

• The PSPRS trust funds represent only the Superstition Fire & Medical District’s 
liability 

• The fluctuating cost of an UAAL causes strain on the Superstition Fire & Medical 
District, affecting our ability to provide services 

• A fully funded pension is the best way to achieve taxpayer and member 
intergenerational equity  

• The Fire Board has taken the following actions to achieve this goal:  
Maintain ARC payment from operating revenues – The Board is committed to 
maintaining the full ARC payment (normal cost and UAAL amortization) from 
operating funds. 
 

Based on these actions the Board plans to achieve its goal of 100% funding by June 30, 
2047, in accordance with the amortization timeline set forth by the PSPRS June 30, 2018 
Actuarial Valuation.  
 



Go to Item 13 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: 12 
BOD#: 2019-02-11 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Reports 
 
Background / Discussion 
This item is for the fire chief and his staff to share information with the Board of items occurring within, or 
related to, the fire district. Any item shared is for information only. Upon request of the Board, any item shared 
during this agenda item may be moved to the agenda for future meetings. Board discussion, other than clarifying 
questions, cannot occur and no action, position, or direction may occur until the specific item is placed on the 
agenda. 
 
 Senior Leadership Team 
 Labor 

 
 
 

Recommended Motion: 
N/A 

 



Go to Item 14 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: 13 
BOD#: 2019-02-12 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Executive Session for discussing the Bourgeois letter.  The Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant 
to §ARS 38-431.03(A)(3) for discussion or consultation for legal advice and possible instructions to the District’s 
attorney relating to the same pursuant to §ARS 38-431.03(A)(4). (BOD #2019-02-11) 
 
 
Submitted By:  
Legal Counsel William Whittington 
 
Background/Discussion:  
Note: Executive Sessions are confidential pursuant to ARS §38-431.03(C).  
Note: Legal action involving a final vote or decision shall not be taken at an executive session. 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s): 
N/A 
 

Recommended Motion: 
“Motion to go into Executive Session at (State Time) pursuant to ARS §38-431.03(A)(3) for legal advice with an 
attorney regarding the Bourgeois letter and possible instructions to the District’s Attorney relating to the same 
pursuant to  ARS §38-431.03(A)(4) .” 
 

 



Go To Item 15 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: #14 
BOD#: 2019-02-13 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Possible instructions from legal counsel regarding the Bourgeois letter.  
 
Submitted By 
Legal Counsel William Whittington 
 
 
Background/Discussion 
Possible instructions to legal counsel regarding the Bourgeois letter.  
 
 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
NA  
 
Enclosure(s) 
 NA  
 
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion TBD” 
 

 



Go to Item 16 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: 15 
BOD#: 2019-02-14 
 
Agenda Item Title 
New Business / Future Agenda Items 
 
Submitted By 
Board of Directors  
 
Background/Discussion 
This item is used as a placeholder to discuss New Business / Future Agenda Items, the Board may want on a 
future agenda. 
 
Financial Impact 
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s) 
N/A 
 

Recommended Motion: 
N/A 

 



Go to Item 17 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: 16 
BOD#: 2019-02-n/a 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Announcements 
 
Background / Discussion 
The BOD and staff may share and discuss items to be placed on future BOD agendas.  
 
 

Recommended Motion: 
N/A 

 
 

  



Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 20, 2019 
Agenda Item: 17 
BOD#: 2019-02-15 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Adjournment 
 

Recommended Motion: 
“Motion to adjourn the Board meeting.” 

 
 

 

 

   



 
 

Go to Agenda 

Appendix A 
 
A. Board Meeting Minutes from January 16, 2019 

 
Submitted By 
Board Secretary Sherry Mueller 
 
Background / Discussion 
The board meeting minutes of the previous meeting(s) are provided for the BOD to approve. If the BOD would 
like to discuss the minutes, they may be removed from the consent agenda. After approval, minutes are signed 
by the Clerk of the Board and kept as the official public record.  
 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item 
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s) 
January 16, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 
 









































 
 

Go to Agenda 

Appendix B 
 
A. Board Work Session Minutes from January 28, 2019 

 
Submitted By 
Board Clerk Kathleen Chamberlain 
Board Secretary Sherry Mueller 
 
Background / Discussion 
The work session meeting minutes of the previous meeting(s) are provided for the BOD to approve. If the BOD 
would like to discuss the minutes, they may be removed from the consent agenda. After approval, minutes are 
signed by the Clerk of the Board and kept as the official public record.  
 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item 
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s) 
January 28, 2019 Board Work Session Minutes 
 

















 
 

Go to Agenda 

Appendix C 
 

C. Renewal of contract for property and casualty insurance service 
 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
Finance Director Roger Wood 
 
Background / Discussion:  
Cindy Elbert Insurance Services is our current broker for our ESIP insurance property damage and liability 
policies.  The quote we received from Cindy Elbert Insurance Services for the period March 1, 2019 – February 
28, 2020 is $140,845.00, an increase of 2.3%.  The increase is due to the following:   
 
   Last Year This Year Change  Coverage 
A. Auto & Property: $106,182 $108,823 +  2,641  Vehicle, Buildings, contents  
B. Inland Marine:     20,138     19,504 +     634   Portable equipment 
C. Umbrella Liability:     12,094     11,984 -      110   Umbrella, General, Professional  

$140,945 $137,780 $  3,165 
 
The increase in Auto & Property and Inland Marine (A & B above) is caused by the following: 
 

A. The value of the buildings insured increased $1,181,547 (5.0%), and the value of vehicles insured 
increased $109,806 (1.1%).   

B. Considering the $1.29 million increase in assets insured, the actual cost per dollar of insured assets 
increased 1.43% year-over-year. 

C. The decrease in Umbrella Liability insurance (C above) is due to the increased number of calls the District 
responds to, and the fact that the District now responds to ambulance transport calls.   
 

Additional Items for Consideration. 
1. Terrorism Coverage. 

a. Annual premium = $2,448. 
b. The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 requires insurance companies to offer terrorism 

coverage.   
c. The District can deny this coverage. 

2. Optional Increased Cyber Liability Coverage. 
a. Annual premium = $5,002 for $1 million is coverage. 
b. The General Liability coverage (C above) already includes $1M per event/$10M aggregate 

network security and data breach liability coverage 
c. The District can deny this coverage. 

 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item: 
$3,165 additional cost  
 
Staff Recommendation:  
Staff recommends the approval of the ESIP insurance for property and vehicle damage, and liability.  Staff also 
recommends the Board reject the Optional Terrorism and Increased Cyber Liability coverage. 
 



 
 

Go to Agenda 

 
 
Enclosure(s):  
Cindy Elbert Insurance Services Premium Quote 
 
NOTE:  The Cindy Elbert Insurance Policy and Terrorism Policy for the period March 2019 – February 2020 was 
distributed to the Board prior to the Board meeting within the Board meeting deck. 
 

 


































































































































	0.0 February 2019 Cover Page
	0.1 Board Agenda
	1.0 February 2019 Blurb Financials 1
	1.1 2019 February Financial Statements and Bank Rec Sig Page 1
	2.0 February Blurb Service Awards 2
	3.0 2019-02 Blurb Call to Public  3
	4.0 2019-02 Blurb Consent Agenda 4
	5.0 2019 Blurb FY 19-20 Tax Abstract 5
	6.0 Blurb Kauffman Homes Annexation
	6.1 Resolution 2019-02-20-01
	6.2 AJ City Resolution
	6.3 Application for Annexation
	7.0 Blurb Arizonian Letter
	8.0 Policies for Approval
	9.0 Policies for Review
	9.1 1000 Recruitment_and_Selection
	9.2 1002 Promotions_and_Transfers
	9.3 1003 Position_Descriptions
	9.4 1004 Classification_Specifications
	9.5 1006 Fire_Officer_Development
	9.6 1007 Educational_Incentives
	9.7 1010 Emergency_Recall
	9.8 1012 Discriminatory_Harassment
	9.9 1013 Conduct_and_Behavior
	10.0 Blurb Accrued Sick Leave Buy Out at Retirement
	11.0 Blurb Pension Funding Policy
	11.1 Pension Funding Policy
	12.0 Reports Blurb
	13.0 Blurb Executive Session
	14.0 Blurb Bourgeois
	15.0 Blurb New Business - Future Agenda Items
	16.0 Announcements Blurb
	17.0 Adjournment Blurb
	Appendix A Blurb 011619 Board Minutes
	Appendix A.1 BOD Minutes from January
	Appendix B Blurb 012819 Work Session Minutes
	Appendix B.1 Work Session Minutes
	Appendix C Blurb Insurance Renewal
	Appendix C.1 Cindy Elbert Insurance Renewal - 3.1.19-2.28.20

